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DECISION


Clayton Moore, Jr., is subject to discipline for pleading guilty to offenses reasonably related to his profession and involving moral turpitude, and for violating drug laws.

Procedure


On May 11, 2004, the Department of Health and Senior Services, Bureau of Emergency Medical Services (“the Department”) filed a complaint seeking to discipline Moore.  Moore was personally served a copy of the complaint on August 31, 2004.
  He filed no response to the complaint.


On October 20, 2004, the Department filed a motion for summary for summary determination.  Pursuant to § 536.073.3, RSMo 2000,
 our Regulation 1 CSR 15-3.440(3)(B)3.A provides that we may decide this case without a hearing if the Department establishes facts that (a) Moore does not dispute and (b) entitle the Department to a favorable decision.  ITT Commercial Fin. Corp. v. Mid-Am. Marine Supply Corp., 854 S.W.2d 371, 380-82 (Mo. banc 1993).


We gave Moore until November 29, 2004, to respond to the motion, but he did not respond.  Therefore, the following facts as established by the Department’s exhibits are undisputed.

Findings of Fact

1. Moore is licensed as an emergency medical technician (“EMT”)-Basic.  His license is and was at all relevant times current and active.

2. On November 28, 2001, a superseding indictment was filed in the United States District Court, Eastern District of Missouri, in St. Louis.  Count I charged the following:

Beginning on or about March 1, 1998 and continuing until the date of this indictment, in St. Louis County within the Eastern District of Missouri and elsewhere . . . Clayton Moore, Jr. . . . the defendants herein, did knowingly and intentionally conspire, confederate and agree together, with each other and with others known and unknown, to commit the following offense against the United States: knowingly and intentionally distributing a mixture or substance containing cocaine base and a mixture or substance containing cocaine, both Schedule II Narcotic Controlled drugs, in violation of Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(a)(1).

All in violation  of Title 21, United States Code, Section 846; and

The quantity of cocaine base involved in the offense was in excess of fifty (50) grams, punishable under Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(b)(1)(A)(iii).

The quantify of cocaine involved in the offense was in excess of five hundred (500) grams, punishable under Title 21, United States Code, Section 841(b)(1)(B)(ii)(II).

3. On March 5, 2002, Moore pled guilty to Count I.  On May 24, 2002, Moore was adjudicated guilty of the offense of Conspiracy to Distribute Cocaine in violation of 21 USC 841(a)(1) and 846.  Moore was sentenced to 30 months in prison followed by 3 years’ supervised release.

Conclusions of Law 


We have jurisdiction to hear the Department’s complaint.  Sections 621.045, RSMo 2000 and 190.165.2.  The Department has the burden of proving that Moore has committed an act for which the law allows discipline.  Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 711 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).


The Department argues that there is cause for discipline under § 190.165, which states:


2.  The department may cause a complaint to be filed with the administrative hearing commission as provided by chapter 621, RSMo, against any holder of any certificate, permit or license required by sections 190.100 to 190.245 or any person who has failed to renew or has surrendered his or her certificate, permit or license for failure to comply with the provisions of sections 190.100 to 190.245 or any lawful regulations promulgated by the department to implement such sections.  Those regulations shall be limited to the following:

*   *   *


(2) Being finally adjudicated and found guilty, or having entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere, in a criminal prosecution under the laws of any state or of the United States, for any offense reasonably related to the qualifications, functions or duties of any activity licensed or regulated pursuant to sections 190.100 to 190.245, for any offense an essential element of which is fraud, dishonesty or an act of violence, or for any offense involving moral turpitude, whether or not sentence is imposed;

*   *   *


(14) Violation of drug laws or rules and regulations of this state, any other state or the federal government[.]

The Department also cites its regulation 19 CSR 30-40.365, which states:

(2) The department may cause a complaint to be filed with the Administrative Hearing Commission as provided by Chapter 621, RSMo, against any holder of any certificate, permit or license required by the comprehensive emergency medical services systems act or any person who has failed to renew or has surrendered his or her certificate, permit or license for failure to comply with the provisions of the comprehensive emergency medical services systems act or for any of the following reasons:

*   *   *


(B) Being finally adjudicated and found guilty, or having entered a plea or guilty or nolo contendere, in a criminal prosecution under the laws of any state or of the United States, for any offense reasonably related to the qualifications, functions or duties of any activity licensed or regulated pursuant to the comprehensive emergency medical services systems act, for any offense an essential element of which is fraud, dishonesty or an act of violence, or for any offense involving moral turpitude, whether or not sentence is imposed;

*   *   *


(N) Violation of drug laws or rules and regulations of this state, any other state or the federal government.


Moore pled guilty to violating 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1), which states:

(a) Unlawful acts

Except as authorized by this subchapter, it shall be unlawful for any person knowingly or intentionally –

(1) to manufacture, distribute, or dispense, or possess with intent to manufacture, distribute, or dispense, a controlled substance[.]

Moore also pled guilty to violating 21 U.S.C. § 846, which states:

Any person who attempts or conspires to commit any offense defined in this subchapter shall be subject to the same penalties as 

those prescribed for the offense, the commission of which was the object of the attempt or conspiracy.


The Department argues that Moore committed offenses reasonably related to his profession and involving moral turpitude.  Moore is licensed as an EMT – Basic, a profession responsible for administering medication.  We agree that the offense of conspiracy to distribute cocaine is reasonably related to Moore’s profession.  We find cause for discipline under 

§ 190.165.2(2) and 19 CSR 30-40.365(2)(B).


Moral turpitude is:

an act of baseness, vileness, or depravity in the private and social duties which a man owes to his fellowman or to society in general, contrary to the accepted and customary rule of right and duty between man and man; everything “done contrary to justice, honesty, modesty, and good morals.”

In re Frick, 694 S.W.2d 473, 479 (Mo. banc 1985) (quoting In re Wallace, 19 S.W.2d 625 (Mo. banc 1929)).  Narcotics offenses are crimes involving moral turpitude.  Missouri Real Estate Comm’n v. Berger, 764 S.W.2d 706, 709 (Mo. App., E.D. 1989).


We find that conspiracy to distribute cocaine is a crime involving moral turpitude.  We find cause for discipline under § 190.165.2(2) and 19 CSR 30-40.365(2)(B).


Moore violated federal drug laws, which is cause for discipline under § 190.165.2(14) and 19 CSR 30-40.365(2)(N).

Summary


We find cause for discipline under § 190.165.2(2) and (14), and for violating 19 CSR 30-40.365(2)(B) and (N).  We cancel the hearing.


SO ORDERED on January 24, 2005.



________________________________



JUNE STRIEGEL DOUGHTY



Commissioner

	�There was a question of whether there had been personal service of the complaint on Moore.  On November 9, 2004, the Department filed an affidavit attesting that Clayton Moore had been personally served and another affidavit on January 20, 2005, confirming service on Clayton Moore, Jr.


	�Statutory references, unless otherwise noted, are to the 2003 Supplement to the Revised Statutes of Missouri.





	�Compl. Ex. 3.
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